
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Helene Schneider 
Mayor 
Grant House 
Mayor Pro Tempore 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 

Bendy White 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Das Williams 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Dale Francisco 
Frank Hotchkiss 
Michael Self 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov 
 

MAY 11, 2010 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 12:00 Noon - Special Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public 

Meeting Room, 630 Garden Street 
 12:30 p.m. - Ordinance Committee Meeting, Council Chamber 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

SPECIAL FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:00 NOON IN THE DAVID 
GEBHARD PUBLIC MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03) 

Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff relating to the 
Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget. 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER 
(120.03) 

Subject:  Ordinance Amendments Related To Construction Prohibited In The 
Vicinity Of The Conejo Landslide 

Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review and consider referring to the 
full Council the amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 22.90, "Construction Prohibited 
In The Vicinity Of The Conejo Landslide" and Chapter 22.22, "Historic Structures." 



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For Architectural Board Of Review 2010 
Membership Provisions  (640.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 22.68.010 of Chapter 
22.68 of Title 22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Relating to the 
Composition of the Architectural Board of Review and Transitioning the Board 
from Nine Members to Seven Members. 
  

2. Subject:  Grant Funding For Construction Of Tallant Road Bridge Steelhead 
Migration Barrier Removal And Mission Creek Restoration (540.14) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Authorizing the Parks and Recreation Director to Accept 
Grant Funds from, and Execute a Grant Agreement for $397,000 with, the 
California Department of Fish and Game Fisheries Restoration Grant 
Program for the Mission Creek Fish Passage Project at the Tallant Road 
Bridge;  

B. Accept $250,000 in grant funds from the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration Open Rivers Initiative Grant Program for the 
Mission Creek Fish Passage and Creek Restoration Project at the Tallant 
Road Bridge; and 

 
(Cont’d) 



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 
 
2. (Cont’d) 
 

C. Increase the appropriation and estimated revenue by $647,000 in the 
Creeks Division Capital Fund for the Mission Creek Fish Passage and 
Creek Restoration Project at the Tallant Road Bridge. 

 
 
3. Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Santa Barbara Airport Airline 

Terminal Baggage Handling System (560.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Reject the bid of the apparent low bidder, Automatic Systems, Inc. (ASI), 

for the Santa Barbara Airport Airline Terminal Baggage Handling System 
Project (Project), Bid No. 3610, as non-responsive due to bid irregularities;  

B. Award a contract with The Horsley Company, LLC (Horsley), in their low 
bid amount of $810,507.86, for construction of the Project; and 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to 
$121,000 to cover any cost increases that may result from contract 
change orders for extra work and differences between estimated bid 
quantities and actual quantities measured for payment. 

 
 
4. Subject:  Purchase Order For Bathymetric Survey Of Gibraltar Reservoir 

(540.09) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the General Services Manager to 
issue a Purchase Order to MNS Engineers, Inc. (MNS), in the amount of $28,535 
for professional services to perform a bathymetric survey of Gibraltar Reservoir 
(Reservoir), and approve expenditures of $2,850 for extra services that may 
result from necessary changes in the scope of work for a total of $31,385. 
  

5. Subject:  Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal 
Year 2010 (230.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a report on the City's Capital 
Improvement Projects (CIP) for the Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2010. 
  

NOTICES 

6. The City Clerk has on Thursday, May 6, 2010, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City 
Hall, and on the Internet. 



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

NOTICES (CONT’D) 

7. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday May 17, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. to 
the property located at 1464 La Cima Road, which is the subject of an appeal 
hearing set for May 18, 2010, at 2:00 p.m. 

8. Received a letter of resignation from Rental Housing Mediation Task Force 
Member Joshua Allen; the vacancy will be part of the next City Advisory Groups 
recruitment. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

9. Subject:  Parking And Business Improvement Area Annual Assessment 
Report, Fiscal Year 2011 - Intention To Levy (550.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the Fiscal Year 2011 Parking and Business Improvement Area 

(PBIA) Annual Assessment Report;  
B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 

Santa Barbara Declaring Council's Intention to Levy Parking and Business 
Improvement Area Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal Year, at a Public 
Hearing to be Held on May 25, 2010, at 2:00 p.m.; and 

C. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance 
of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 4.37 of the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code by Establishing New Business Categories 
and Revising Rates of Assessment for Specified Categories of Businesses 
of the Downtown Parking and Business Improvement Assessment District 
Established by City Ordinance No. 4179, Adopted on September 3, 1991, 
Pursuant to the Requirements of Parking and Business Improvement Area 
Law of the 1989 California Streets and Highways Code Sections 
36500-36551. 



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

10. Subject:  Appeal Of The Planning Commission Approval Of 825 De La Vina 
Street (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Donald Sharpe and uphold 
the Planning Commission decision to approve the Tentative Subdivision Map for 
a mixed-use development of seven condominiums, making the findings and 
subject to the Conditions of Approval in Planning Commission Resolution 002-
010. 
  

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIONS 

11. Subject:  Conference With Real Property Negotiators - Lower Westside 
Center (330.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider instructions to 
its negotiators regarding the possible purchase of real property located at 508 
Coronel Place, Santa Barbara, California, Assessor's Parcel No. 037-144-002.  
The owner of the real property is the Della B. Mitchell Trust dated February 12, 
2003.  Negotiations are held pursuant to the authority of California Government 
Code Section 54956.8.  The City's negotiators are Nancy Rapp, Parks and 
Recreation Director, and representatives of the City Attorney's Office.  The 
negotiator for the owner is Lee Rousseau.  Under negotiation:   Price and terms 
of sale of a possible purchase of real property. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 20 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

12. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider initiation of 
litigation pursuant to Subsection (c) of Section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
(one potential case). 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  



 

5/11/2010 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 

CLOSED SESSIONS (CONT’D) 

13. Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Pending Litigation (160.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider pending 
litigation pursuant to subsection (a) of section 54956.9 of the Government Code 
and take appropriate action as needed.  The pending litigation is City of Santa 
Barbara v. Melchiori Construction Company, et al., SBSC Case No. 1340583. 
 Scheduling:  Duration, 5 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

14. Subject:  Conference With Labor Negotiator (440.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session, per Government Code 
Section 54957.6, to consider instructions to City negotiator Kristy Schmidt, 
Employee Relations Manager, regarding negotiations with the Police Officers 
Association, the Police Managers Association, the General Bargaining Unit, the 
Treatment and Patrol Bargaining Units, the Firefighters Association, and the 
Hourly Bargaining Unit, and regarding discussions with unrepresented 
management and confidential employees about salaries and fringe benefits.  
 Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
 Report:  None anticipated 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, May 17, 2010, at 1:30 p.m. at 1464 La Cima Road.  (See Item No. 7) 

 
 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: May 11, 2010 Das Williams, Chair  
TIME: 12:00 Noon  Dale Francisco 
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Michael Self 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario 
City Administrator Interim Finance Director 

 
 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Subject:  Finance Committee Review Of Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget 
 
Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff relating to the 
Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget. 
 
 
 



 
File Code No.   

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 FINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Finance Committee  
 
FROM: Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Finance Committee Review Of Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended 

Budget 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Finance Committee hear a report from staff relating to the Fiscal Year 2011 
Recommended Budget.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
On Tuesday, April 20, 2010, the Finance Committee approved the Committee’s budget 
review schedule and topics in connection with the filing of the Fiscal Year 2011 
Recommended Budget.  The approved budget review schedule is attached to this report. 
 
Today’s meeting will include a discussion of two topics:  
 

1. General Fund departmental proposed fee changes 
2. Enterprise Fund proposed fee changes 

 
The next meeting will be on Tuesday, May 25 from 11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT: Approved Finance Committee Review Schedule  
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 



Attachment  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
Finance Committee Review Schedule 

Fiscal Year 2011 Recommended Budget 
 
Meeting Date and Time Department 
 
Tuesday, April 27, 2010 
11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.  
 

 
 General Fund balancing strategy (15 min) 
 General Fund non-departmental revenues and 

assumptions (20 min) 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes - 

Part 1 (1 hour) 
 Streets Program revenues (30 min) 

 
Note:  The March 31, 2010 Investment Report will also 
be on the agenda (10 min) 
 

 
Tuesday, May 4 
12:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes - 

Part 2 (45 minutes)  
 Downtown Parking – Discussion of PBIA proposed 

rate changes (30 min) 
 Golf Enterprise Fund proposed fees (20 min) 

 
 
Tuesday, May 11 
12:00 p.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
 

 
 General Fund departmental proposed fee changes – 

Part 3, if needed (30 min) 
 Enterprise fund proposed fee changes (1 hour 15 

min) – Water, Wastewater, Waterfront, Solid Waste 

 
Tuesday, May 25 
11:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. 
 

 
 Review of Citywide reserve balances and policies 

(30 min) 
 
Note: The following items will also be on the agenda: 

1. Loan for New Housing Authority Project – 
Bradley Property (30 min) 

2. RDA Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial 
Statements – March 31, 2010 (5 min) 

3. 3rd Quarter Review – City Interim Financial 
Statements (30 min) 

4. Follow-up discussion of FY 2010 balancing 
options: (1) RDA funding of Downtown Parking 
Fund capital and (2) Pay back of Franchise Fees 
by Solid Waste Fund to General Fund 

 

Wednesday, May 26 
10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

 Follow-up on items requested by Finance Committee 
(if necessary) 

 



File Code 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 

ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
DATE: May 11, 2010 Bendy White, Chair 
TIME:  12:30 p.m. Grant House 
PLACE:  Council Chambers Frank Hotchkiss 
                             
 
Office of the City                                                           Office of the City 
Administrator                                                                 Attorney 
 
Lori Pedersen                                                Stephen P. Wiley 
Administrative Analyst                        City Attorney 
                                                
 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 

Subject:  Ordinance Amendments Related To Construction Prohibited In The 
Vicinity Of The Conejo Landslide 

 
Recommendation:  That the Ordinance Committee review and consider referring to the full 
Council the amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 22.90, “Construction Prohibited In 
The Vicinity Of The Conejo Landslide” and Chapter 22.22, “Historic Structures.”  

 
 
 
 
 



File Code No.  120.03 

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Ordinance Committee Members 
 
FROM: Building Division, Community Development Department  
  
SUBJECT: Ordinance Amendments Related To Construction Prohibited In The 

Vicinity Of The Conejo Landslide 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That the Ordinance Committee review and consider referring to the full Council the 
amendments to Municipal Code Chapter 22.90, “Construction Prohibited In The Vicinity Of 
The Conejo Landslide” and Chapter 22.22, “Historic Structures.” 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The attached draft ordinance amending Municipal Code Chapter 22.90 has been 
prepared at the request of certain property owners in the Conejo Road area who lost 
their homes in the November 2008 Tea Fire.  The proposed ordinance would amend the 
existing “Map of the Conejo Slide Area” in accordance with the Grover Hollingsworth 
and Associates, Inc. geotechnical report dated May 29, 2009 and it would allow some 
minor new construction within the current 25-foot buffer zone. In doing so, the ordinance 
would relocate the boundaries of what has been termed “Slide Mass C” on the eastern 
side of the Conejo Landslide allowing for possible reconstruction of certain homes 
destroyed in the Tea Fire.  A separate attached draft ordinance amending Municipal 
Code Chapter 22.22, the City’s Code regulations for “Historic Structures” would allow 
designated Structures of Merit or Landmarks to be reconstructed within the Conejo 
Landslide Area. 
 
In 1984, the City Council adopted Municipal Code Chapter 22.90 (at that time as an 
uncodified ordinance), “Construction Prohibited In The Vicinity Of The Conejo Road 
Landslide” due to active slide movement in the Conejo area apparently related to the 
very wet “El Nino” rain season of 1982-83.  Since that time, approximately eight homes 
and structures have succumbed to landslide movement while many other homes 
continue to experience foundation settlement, collapse of sewers, exterior stucco 
cracking, movement of utilities and severe cracking or collapse of block walls and 
fences, including other detrimental affects upon private property.  The Ealand Place cul-
de-sac, located at the top of the Conejo Landslide, in particular, continues to actively 
slide and is severely sloped, rendering the cul-de-sac inaccessible to motor vehicles.   



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Ordinance Amendments Related To Construction Prohibited In The Vicinity Of The Conejo 
Landslide 
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 

Clearly, the real potential for a major landslide, especially in the event of an earthquake, 
remains a significant public health and safety concern for the Conejo Road area. 
 
At the request of several Conejo Slide mass C area property owners, the City reviewed 
a geological report prepared by the firm of Grover-Hollingsworth and Associates in May 
2009.  The City’s Chief Building Official also commissioned peer review of the report by 
Frank J. Kenton, an experienced geologist very familiar with the history of the Conejo 
Slide area and its underlying geological conditions.  
 
City staff is also proposing to amend Section 22.90.040 (Exception: Designs by 
Engineering Geologist) by adding ordinance provisions intended to allow some non-
habitable structures and improvements within 25 feet of the Slide Mass boundary but 
not closer then 10 feet.  These non-habitable improvements would include walkways, 
retaining and non-retaining walls, driveways, storage sheds and other amenities as 
deemed appropriate by the Chief Building Official.  Septic systems, sewers, sewer 
laterals, water piping and landscaping sprinklers would continue to be prohibited within 
the 25-foot setback. 
 
Special construction conditions will be applicable to the Tea Fire parcels identified for 
possible re-construction in the Grover Hollingsworth and Associates geotechnical report 
dated May 29, 2009 (as reviewed by Mr. Kenton’s geological review dated December 
17, 2009.)  Some of these conditions may include the following: 1. foundation 
inspections to be performed by a California Registered Engineering Geologist to confirm 
earth materials encountered are as described in the Preliminary Geologic and Soils 
Engineering Reports; 2. that the location of the Slide Mass C boundary has been 
positively located on the site; 3. that, should there be a change in the consultant record, 
the new geological or engineering consultant must sign a statement with the City that 
they accept all geologic and soils engineering design and interpretations in the Grover 
Hollingsworth report dated May 29, 2009 and subsequent documents. 
 
Currently, applications are on file for homes included in the Conejo Landslide Area that, 
as mentioned, would otherwise not be allowed to be rebuilt.  Should the Ordinance 
Committee and City Council approve the revised Conejo Landslide Mass C boundary 
change and other amendments as proposed, the review process for approval of the 
plans for the reconstruction of these homes could be re-initiated.  
 
Staff is also recommending that a separate ordinance amending Chapter 22.22 of Title 
22 allowing City designated Structures of Merit or Landmarks within the Conejo 
Landslide Area be allowed to be reconstructed in accordance with the provisions of the 
State Historic Building Code.  However, prior the issuance of a building permit, an 
environmental or engineering study, or review may be required.  This request also 
originated with a specific property owner who asked the HLC to designate her 
dilapidated building located at 1809 Stanwood Drive a City Structure of Merit (despite a 
contrary recommendation from City staff) in order to properly condition the 



Ordinance Committee Agenda Report 
Ordinance Amendments Related To Construction Prohibited In The Vicinity Of The Conejo 
Landslide 
May 11, 2010 
Page 3 

 

reconstruction of the building, particularly its foundation. This structure remains clearly 
within the Slide mass C Area of danger  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Draft Ordinance Amending Chapter 22.90 
 2. Draft Ordinance Amending Chapter 22.22 
 3.  Revised Conejo Slide Mass Boundary 
 
PREPARED BY: George A. Estrella, Chief Building Official 
 
SUBMITTED BY:  Paul Casey, Community Development Director/Assistant  

City Administrator 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1 

1 

DRAFT 
April 29, 2010 

Showing Changes from Existing Code 
New Provision in Underline 

Deletions in Strike-out Text 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING TITLE TWENTY-TWO 
OF THE SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE IN ORDER 
TO AMEND CHAPTER 22.90 PERTAINING THE EXTENT 
OF THE A REVISED SLIDE MASS C AREA COVERED 
BY THE CITY’S 1997 CONEJO SLIDE AREA 
ORDINANCE IN ORDER TO REDUCE THE AREA OF 
SLIDE MASS C IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEW 
GEOLOGICAL INFORMATION AND TO ALLOW CERTAIN 
LIMITED NEW NON-HABITABLE IMPROVEMENTS UNDER 
CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES.  

 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE: Section 22.90.040 of Chapter 22.90 of Title 22 
of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to add a new 
subparagraph F which reads as follows: 
 

F. NON-HABITABLE IMPROVEMENTS. Non-habitable building 
improvements may be constructed within twenty-five (25) 
feet of the Slide Mass C boundary but not closer then 
ten (10) feet. For the purposes of this subparagraph, 
non-habitable improvements shall include walkways, 
retaining and non-retaining walls, driveway paving, 
portable storage sheds, and other non habitable 
improvements as deemed appropriate by the Chief 
Building Official. However, septic systems, building 
sewers, sewer laterals, water piping, and landscaping 
sprinklers are prohibited within the 25 feet of the 
boundary of Slide Mass C. 



 2

 
SECTION TWO: Section 22.90.045 of Chapter 22.90 of Title 22 
of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is amended to read as 
follows: 

 
 

Section 22.90.045 Map of the Conejo Slide Area. 
 
The Map of the Conejo Slide Area, as depicted in the 
Grover-Hollinsworth Geotechnical Report dated May 29, 2009 
and dated November 6, 1997 and depicting the parcels of 
real property that are located entirely or partially 
within the boundary of Slide Mass C of the Conejo Slide 
Area is hereby amended to be consistent with the 
boundaries described in above-referenced Report. The City 
Clerk and the Chief of Building and Safety shall each keep 
a copy of the Map of the Conejo Slide Area and a full copy 
of the May 29, 2009 Grover-Hollinsworth Geotechnical 
Report on file as received by the City. An facsimile 
example of such map shall be reproduced and codified with 
this section. 

 
 

SECTION THREE: Chapter 22.90 of Title 22 of the Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code is hereby amended to add a new 
section, section 22.90.080, which reads as follows: 

 
Section 22.90.080 Special Geological Provisions. 
Those residential structures identified in the report 
dated December 17, 2009 prepared by Frank J. Kenton for 
the City’s Chief Building Official (hereinafter the 
“2009 Kenton Report”) which are listed as being 
appropriate for reconstruction may be reconstructed by 
their owners in the manner consistent with the 
recommendations contained with 2009 Kenton Report 
including, specifically, the applicable construction 
recommendations contained in the Grover Hollingsworth 
and Associates, Inc., report dated May 29, 2009 both of 
which reports shall be on file with the City Clerk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
spw/ord/Conejo Slide Amend ord.  
May 5, 2010: 9:30 am 



ATTACHMENT 2 
Ordinance Committee Draft 

Showing Changes from Current Code 
May 11, 2010 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 22.22 
OF TITLE 22 OF THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW THE HISTORIC 
RECONSTRUCTION OF A DESIGNATED CITY 
STRUCTURE OF MERIT OR LANDMARK 
LOCATED WITHIN THE CONEJO SLIDE AREA OF 
THE CITY. 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION ONE: Section 22.22.70 of Chapter 22.22 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code is 
hereby amended to add a new subparagraph, subparagraph B, “Reconstruction of Historic 
Resources within the Conejo Slide Area,” which reads as follows: 
 
A.  PRESERVATION OF LANDMARKS AND STRUCTURES OF MERIT.  Every 
Landmark and Structure of Merit shall be maintained in good repair by the owner thereof, or 
such other person or persons who may have the legal custody and control thereof, in order to 
preserve it against decay and deterioration.  Nothing in this chapter shall be construed so as to 
prohibit ordinary and necessary maintenance and repair of a Landmark provided that whenever 
such repair or maintenance would result in an alteration to the exterior of the structure or 
whenever it would require the issuance of a City building permit, the issuance of such a permit 
shall be reviewed by the Commission and, if necessary, conditioned in accordance with the 
requirements of this Chapter, provided that such review shall be consistent with the Landmark 
alteration review authority granted by Section 817(c) of the City Charter and Section 22.22.080 
hereof. Every Landmark or Structure of Merit is hereby determined to be eligible for application 
of alternative standards for historical structures as provided in the California Building Code as 
adopted and amended by the City.   
 
B. RECONSTRUCTION OF HISTORIC RESOURCES WITHIN THE CONEJO SLIDE 
AREA.  Designated City Historic Resources located within the Slide Mass C Area may be 
reconstructed in accordance with the latest edition of the Historical Building Code as adopted by 
the State of California as amended by the City of Santa Barbara provided that such 
reconstruction is accomplished as follows: 
 
 1. in a manner which follows the Secretary of Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of 

Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, Restoring, and 
Reconstructing Historic Buildings (1995) and; 

 
 2.  in a manner consistent with appropriate historic design review where design approval 

is obtained from the City’s Historic Landmarks Commission as required by Santa 
Barbara Municipal Code sections 22.22.080 and 22.22.090, and ; 

 
 3. the structure constituting the Historic Resource is not expanded in size. 



ATACHMENT3

—

t±

[•‘[

nb



1 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING SECTION 22.68.010 OF 
CHAPTER 22.68 OF TITLE 22 OF THE SANTA BARBARA 
MUNICIPAL CODE RELATING TO THE COMPOSITION OF 
THE ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW AND 
TRANSITIONING THE BOARD FROM NINE MEMBERS TO 
SEVEN MEMBERS. 

 
 
WHEREAS, on November 3, 2009, the voters passed Measure E amending Section 
814 of the City Charter to reduce the membership of the Architectural Board of Review 
from nine (9) members to seven (7) members and to allow up to three (3) members of 
the Board to not be electors of the City, as long as they are electors of the County of 
Santa Barbara; and 
 
WHEREAS, Measure E authorized the City Council to adopt an ordinance to implement 
the provisions of the amended Charter Section 814, including those provisions deemed 
necessary to properly transition the Board from nine (9) members to seven (7) 
members. 
 
 
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 22.68.010 of Chapter 22.68 of Title 22 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code is amended to read as follows: 
 
22.68.010 Architectural Board of Review. 
 
 A. PURPOSE.  Section 814 of the Santa Barbara City Charter creates and 
establishes an Architectural Board of Review for the City to promote the general public 
welfare of the City and to protect and preserve the natural and historical charm and 
beauty of the City and its aesthetic appeal and beauty. 
 B. MEMBERSHIP.  The Architectural Board of Review shall be composed of seven 
(7) members to be appointed as provided in the Charter.   
 C. OFFICERS - QUORUM.  The members of the Architectural Board of Review 
shall elect from their own members a chair and vice-chair.  The Community 
Development Director or his or her designee shall act as secretary and record Board 
actions and render written reports thereof for the Board as required by this Chapter.  
The Board shall adopt its own rules of procedure.  Four (4) members shall constitute a 
quorum, one (1) of which shall be an architect. 
 



2 

SECTION 2.  Pursuant to Measure E, approved by the voters on November 3, 2009, the 
City Council is authorized to adopt an ordinance implementing the provisions of the 
amended Charter Section 814, including those provisions deemed necessary to 
properly transition the Board from nine (9) members to seven (7) members.  In order to 
properly administer the Board’s functions and maintain the Board’s effectiveness, the 
City Council chooses to have the Board transition from nine (9) members to seven (7) 
members incrementally, reaching a membership of seven (7) members upon the 
appointment of new members in December 2010.  From the effective date of this 
ordinance until December 31, 2010, the Board shall have eight (8) members.  This 
transition period is necessary to maintain a sufficient number of qualified landscape 
architects and to ensure proper landscape plan reviews. 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.14 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Creeks Division, Parks and Recreation Department  
 
SUBJECT: Grant Funding For Construction Of Tallant Road Bridge Steelhead 

Migration Barrier Removal And Mission Creek Restoration  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 

Barbara authorizing the Parks and Recreation Director to accept grant funds from, 
and execute a grant agreement for $397,000 with, the California Department of 
Fish and Game Fisheries Restoration Grant Program for the Mission Creek Fish 
Passage Project at the Tallant Road Bridge;  

B. Accept $250,000 in grant funds from the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration Open Rivers Initiative Grant Program for the Mission Creek Fish 
Passage and Creek Restoration Project at the Tallant Road Bridge; and 

C. Increase the appropriation and estimated revenue by $647,000 in the Creeks 
Division Capital Fund for the Mission Creek Fish Passage and Creek Restoration 
Project at the Tallant Road Bridge. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Introduction 
 
Over the last four years, the Creeks Division has worked with the California Department of 
Fish and Game (CDFG), National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), 
Santa Barbara County Flood Control District, Environmental Defense Center, and 
community members to remove barriers to steelhead trout migration and restore riparian 
habitat in Mission Creek.   
 
Mission Creek is considered the most viable stream for steelhead trout restoration in the 
City of Santa Barbara.  Mission Creek contains high quality spawning and rearing habitat 
within the stream channels in the mid and upper watershed and currently has an existing 
population of rainbow trout (freshwater version of steelhead trout). Mission Creek also has 
a documented historic run of steelhead trout, and in five of the last seven years, steelhead 



Council Agenda Report 
Grant Funding For Construction Of Tallant Road Bridge Steelhead Migration Barrier 
Removal And Mission Creek Restoration  
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 

trout have been recorded attempting to migrate upstream without success due to barriers 
within the stream channel.  
The Tallant Road Bridge and associated concrete apron is a significant barrier to upstream 
steelhead trout migration on Mission Creek. Removing this barrier will help provide access 
for steelhead trout to 3.9 miles of creek channel, which include 2 miles of moderate to high 
quality spawning and rearing habitat.    
 
In October 2008, the Creeks Division applied for a grant from NOAA to construct the 
Mission Creek Fish Passage and Restoration Project at the Tallant Road Bridge. In August 
2009, NOAA awarded $250,000 to the City for project construction. 
 
In May 2009, the Creeks Division applied for a grant from the CDFG to construct the 
Mission Creek Fish Passage and Restoration Project at the Tallant Road Bridge.  In March 
2010, CDFG awarded the City $397,000 in grant funds for the project.  CDFG requires a 
Resolution (attached) from the City Council authorizing acceptance of the grant funds and 
execution of the grant agreement. 
 
In April 2010, construction plans and permitting were completed for the fish passage and 
creek restoration project at the Tallant Road Bridge.  Pending Council approval, the NOAA 
and CDFG grant funds will be used for construction of the project.  With an estimated 
construction cost of $963,160, the remaining construction costs would be covered by 
funds currently appropriated in the Creeks Capital Program.  The Creeks Division and 
Public Works Engineering Division will return to Council in June with a construction 
contract for approval.  Project construction is scheduled to begin in July 2010 and be 
completed in October 2010. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT:   
 
The purpose of the project is to improve steelhead trout migration and riparian habitat in 
Mission Creek. These efforts will contribute to local, regional, and federal objectives of 
removing migration barriers for the federally endangered steelhead trout and will provide 
important wildlife habitat within the Mission Creek watershed. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Cameron Benson, Creeks Restoration/Clean Water Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Nancy L. Rapp, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



1 

RESOLUTION NO:    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AUTHORIZING THE PARKS AND 
RECREATION DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT GRANT FUNDS 
FROM, AND EXECUTE A GRANT AGREEMENT FOR 
$397,000 WITH, THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH 
AND GAME FISHERIES RESTORATION GRANT 
PROGRAM FOR THE MISSION CREEK FISH PASSAGE 
PROJECT AT THE TALLANT ROAD BRIDGE 

 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Santa Barbara will enter into a grant agreement with the 
California Department of Fish and Game for construction of the Mission Creek Fish 
Passage Project at the Tallant Road Bridge; and 
 
WHEREAS, the California Department of Fish and Game has Agreed to provide the City 
of Santa Barbara with $397,000 for the Mission Creek Fish Passage Project at the 
Tallant Road Bridge; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  The Parks and Recreation Director of the City of Santa Barbara is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute a grant agreement, in a form acceptable to the City 
Attorney, between the City of Santa Barbara and the California Department of Fish and 
Game for grant funds in an amount not to exceed $397,000 for the Mission Creek Fish 
Passage Project at the Tallant Road Bridge according to the terms and conditions set 
forth in the agreement; and 
 
SECTION 2.  The Council appoints the Parks and Recreation Director as representative 
of the City of Santa Barbara to conduct negotiations, execute and submit all documents 
including, but not limited to, applications, agreements, amendments, payment requests 
and other documents which may be necessary for the completion of the proposed 
project. 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  560.04 
 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  May 11, 2010 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Construction Of The Santa Barbara Airport Airline 

Terminal Baggage Handling System 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:  
 
A. Reject the bid of the apparent low bidder, Automatic Systems, Inc. (ASI), for the 

Santa Barbara Airport Airline Terminal Baggage Handling System Project 
(Project), Bid No. 3610, as non-responsive due to bid irregularities;  

B. Award a contract with The Horsley Company, LLC (Horsley), in their low bid 
amount of $810,507.86, for construction of the Project; and 

C. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve expenditures up to $121,000 to 
cover any cost increases that may result from contract change orders for extra 
work and differences between estimated bid quantities and actual quantities 
measured for payment. 
 

DISCUSSION: 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The work consists of specialty items not included in the overall terminal building bid 
process, specifically the outbound baggage handling system.  This work was not 
included in the terminal bid, as it was determined that the Airport could save money by 
bidding this separately and independently from the Airline Terminal bid. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Santa Barbara Airport Airline Terminal Baggage 
Handling System 
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 

 

 
CONTRACT BIDS 
 
A total of eight bids were received for the subject work, ranging as follows: 
 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 
  
1. Automatic Systems Inc.* 

Kansas City, MO 
 $789,121.00 

2. The Horsley Company, LLC  
Salt Lake City, UT 

 $810,507.86 

3. Vanderlande Industries 
Marietta, GA 

 $845,283.00 

4. Glidepath, Inc. 
Prairie, TX 

 $871,563.00 

5. Hilmot Corporation 
Waukesha, WI 

 $898,078.55 

6. G&S Mechanical 
Wichita, KS 

 $965,700.00 

7. Logan Teleflex 
Louisville, KY 

 $1,067,062.00 

8. Diversied Conveyors 
Memphis, TN 

 $1,076,618.00 

* Bid deemed non-responsive after staff review. 
 
ASI’s bid included an attachment that contained a number of “clarifications” to the bid, 
with an instruction to the City stating that “the following notations and/or exceptions are 
pertinent to our quotation and should be considered in the evaluation of same.”  The 
“clarifications” resulted in a modification or alteration of the bid which is expressly 
prohibited under the Project specifications.  For this reason, staff deemed the ASI bid to 
be non-responsive and, therefore, it is staff’s recommendation that it must be rejected.  
  
The low bid of $810,507.86, submitted by Horsley, is an acceptable bid that is 
responsive to and meets the requirements of the bid specifications.   
 
The change order funding recommendation of $121,000 or 15%, is typical for this type 
of work and size of project.  
 
BID PROTEST 
 
Horsley submitted a letter of appeal of ASI’s proposal on April 6, 2010, in which it raised 
several concerns with ASI’s bid.  Horsley’s correspondence is available for Council 
member review in the Council reading file, and available for public review in the City 
Clerk’s Office. 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Construction Of The Santa Barbara Airport Airline Terminal Baggage 
Handling System 
May 11, 2010 
Page 3 

 

 

 
Although Horsley brings up several issues with ASI’s bid package, City staff’s 
determination that ASI’s bid is non-responsive is based on the grounds set forth above.  
 
FUNDING   
 
This project is funded by the Airport Bond Fund.  There are sufficient funds in the Airport 
Bond Fund to cover the cost of this Project.   
 
The following summarizes the expenditures recommended in this report: 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FUNDING SUMMARY 
 

 Basic Contract Change Funds Total 

The Horsley Company $810,507.86 $121,000.00 $931,507.86

TOTAL RECOMMENDED AUTHORIZATION $931,507.86
 
The following summarizes all Project design costs, construction contract funding, and 
other Project costs: 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design (by Contract or City staff) $100,000.00

Other Design Costs - City staff $5,000.00

 Subtotal $105,000.00

Construction Contract  $810,507.86

Construction Change Order Allowance $121,000.00

 Subtotal $931,507.86

Construction Management/Inspection by City Staff  Subtotal $5,000.00

TOTAL PROJECT COST $1,041,507.86
 
 
PREPARED BY: Owen Thomas, Principal Engineer/LR/sk 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  540.09 
 

 

 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase Order For Bathymetric Survey Of Gibraltar Reservoir 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council authorize the General Services Manager to issue a Purchase Order to 
MNS Engineers Inc. (MNS), in the amount of $28,535 for professional services to 
perform a bathymetric survey of Gibraltar Reservoir (Reservoir), and approve 
expenditures of $2,850 for extra services that may result from necessary changes in the 
scope of work for a total of $31,385. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The City of Santa Barbara owns and operates the Gibraltar Reservoir, which provides 
approximately 35% of the City’s water supply through the Mission Tunnel.  The 
Reservoir has been losing storage capacity at a rate of approximately 76 acre-feet per 
year from the influx of silt and debris.  A bathymetric survey has been performed every 
three years over the past two decades to determine the remaining storage capacity of 
the Reservoir.  The survey is conducted by measuring the depth of the Reservoir at 
various locations, and then using the measurements to calculate the remaining storage 
capacity relative to the top of Gibraltar Dam.  
 
The Zaca Fire burned more than 60% of the Reservoir watershed, and the subsequent 
winter rains have caused significant debris flows into the Reservoir, which have 
accelerated the rate at which the Reservoir was being filled in with debris.  MNS 
performed a bathymetric survey of the Reservoir in October 2007, after the Zaca Fire, 
but prior to the winter rains.  The 2007 survey determined the Reservoir had 
approximately 7,500 acre feet of remaining storage capacity.  MNS performed a follow-
up bathymetric survey in 2008, after the first winter following the Zaca Fire.  The 2008 
survey demonstrated that the Reservoir had lost approximately 30% of its 2007 
capacity, and had only 5,300 acre feet of capacity remaining.  The proposed 2010 
bathymetric survey is necessary to determine the amount of storage capacity that is 
remaining after two additional winters following the Zaca Fire.   



Council Agenda Report 
Purchase Order For Bathymetric Survey Of Gibraltar Reservoir 
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 

MNS was selected for consistency in reporting since they have performed the surveys 
at Gibraltar for the past 18 years and are one of the consultants on the City’s three-year 
pre-approved engineering consultants list, which was created using a competitive 
qualification-based process for engineering services.  MNS has submitted an 
acceptable proposal in the amount of $28,535 to complete the proposed work, which is 
only 3.9% higher than their 2007 rate for similar services.  Staff is also requesting 
$2,850 in change order authority to cover any unanticipated expenses, for a total 
amount of $31,385. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 
Water Resources conducts bathymetric surveys at Gibraltar Reservoir every three 
years.  This proposed work is being conducted a year earlier in an effort to assess the 
current condition of the Reservoir, and to assist with water supply planning efforts. 
There are sufficient appropriated funds in the Water Fund to cover the project costs.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 
 
The bathymetric study helps to determine the amount of available water in the 
Reservoir.  The data gained by the study is necessary to develop and manage the City’s 
water supply and to mitigate the effects of drought. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Catherine Taylor, Water System Manager/CT/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  230.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 

2010 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That Council receive a report on the City’s Capital Improvement Projects (CIP) for the 
Third Quarter of Fiscal Year 2010. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
This report summarizes progress on capital improvement projects for the Third Quarter of 
Fiscal Year 2010 and includes $21 million in completed construction projects. 
 
CONSTRUCTION HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Eight projects were completed with Notices of Completion in the Third Quarter of Fiscal 
Year 2010, with a total project cost of $21,313,764 (Attachment 1).  Highlights include 
the following: 
 

• Santa Barbara Airport Temporary Facilities and Site Preparation Project 
($5,146,906) - This project prepared the site for construction of the new terminal 
building, while keeping the existing terminal functioning normally, and made 
improvements to the soils underlying the new terminal building foundation. 

 
• Alamar Bridge Repair ($129,017) - This was emergency work to prepare for 

potential erosion associated with the Jesusita Fire.  It consisted of protecting the 
Mission Creek Alamar Street bridge foundation and channel clearing. 

 
• Santa Barbara Airport Water System Upgrade ($405,275) - This project installed 

a secondary waterline feed to the southern area of the airport’s water distribution 
system. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 of 5 

 

• Mission Street at Route 101 Class II Bike Lane and Sidewalk Improvements 
($3,030,392) - This project installed a Class II Bike Lane under the 101 Freeway 
connecting the existing bicycle corridors on the east and west sides of the City 
under the 101 Freeway.  Landscaping and accessibility improvements were also 
included in this project. 

 
• Carrillo Sidewalk Infill Project ($540,910) - This project consisted of constructing 

sidewalk, access ramps, curbs and gutters, landscaping, and bus stop 
improvements on the north side of Carrillo Street between Chino Street and the 
existing sidewalk link approximately 850 feet west of Chino Street.  It also 
included improvements on Meigs Road between Island View Drive and the 
existing sidewalk link approximately 1,000 feet west of Island View Drive. 

 
• Santa Barbara Airport Consolidated Rental Car Project ($8,352,655) - This 

project provided a location for the rental car agencies to fuel, perform minor 
services, and wash and store vehicles.  This project included a 159 kW 
photovoltaic system and received a Gold rating Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design (LEED) certification. 

 
• Zone 3 Slurry Seal Project ($2,750,540) - Slurry Sealing is part of the annual 

asphalt concrete Pavement Maintenance Program.  The area of Zone 3 included 
portions of the southwestern sections of the City, the Waterfront’s 90-minute 
parking lots at the harbor, various roads at the airport, and Garden Street. 

 
• Sewer Main Improvement Project ($958,069) - This project, consisted of 

replacing 5,704 linear feet of sewer mains at various locations throughout the 
City and included 62 point repairs. 

 
In addition, 20 capital improvement projects are currently in construction, with a value of 
$55,343,495 (Attachment 3). The following are some construction highlights: 
 
Creeks: 

• Las Positas Creek Stormwater Management Project ($1,322,323) - The storm 
water improvement work consists of construction of a series of bioswales and 
urban and storm water runoff detention systems to detain and filter polluted storm 
water and incidental urban runoff.  The project will improve the quality of water 
entering Las Positas Creek and the Arroyo Burro Estuary.  The work is now close 
to completion. 

 
Streets: 

• Laguna Pump Station Engine Replacement ($517,466) - The project was 
substantially complete in February 2010 with the addition of a separate 
emergency float system.  The new engines allow the pumps to turn at design 
speed and move significantly more stormwater than in years past. 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
May 11, 2010 
Page 3 of 5 

 

• Loma Alta Sidewalk ($563,566) - This project is located along the northeast side 
of Loma Alta Drive between Coronel Street and Canon Perdido Street.  The work 
consisted of constructing sidewalk and street lighting.  The sidewalk provides 
pedestrian passage from the Westside to the Mesa, the beach areas, City 
College, and residential areas to the east.  The work is substantially complete. 

 
• Marilla Avenue Sidewalk Infill ($105,045) - This project consisted of constructing 

new sidewalk, access ramps, curbs and gutters, and landscaping on the 
northeasterly side of Marilla Avenue between W. Canon Perdido and W. De La 
Guerra Streets.  The project also included installation of three new access ramps 
at the adjacent intersection of W. Canon Perdido and San Andres Streets.  The 
majority of work is complete. 

 
Redevelopment Agency: 

• Carrillo Recreation Center ($3,190,699) - The concrete foundations, wall framing, 
structural upgrades, and rough utilities were completed in the Third Quarter of 
Fiscal Year 2010.  The Ballroom wheel chair lift installation and Carrillo Ballroom 
system commissioning are scheduled for May 2010. 

 
Public Works Wastewater/Water: 

• El Estero Wastewater System Wide Pump Replacement ($222,785) - The work 
consists of replacing the old and outdated return and waste activated sludge 
pumps and the elutrient water system pumps.  The pumps are scheduled to be 
delivered to the site May 2010. 

 
• Cater Water Treatment Plant Solids Removal Chain and Flight Replacement 

($828,860) - The Solids Removal equipment moves solids from the sedimentation 
basins to the drying beds.  The current mechanical Solids Removal System for the 
sedimentation basins was installed during the original 1964 plant construction.  This 
work was recently completed. 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
May 11, 2010 
Page 4 of 5 

 

DESIGN HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
There are currently 45 projects under design, with an estimated total project cost of 
$134,077,520 and categorized as follows: 
 

 PROJECT DESIGNS IN PROGRESS

PROJECT CATEGORY 
No. of 

Projects 
Total Value of 

Projects 

Airport 4 $7,799,385

Creeks 2 $8,800,500

Parks and Recreation 2 $637,051

Public Works: Streets/Transportation/Parking 15 $54,306,400

Public Works: Water/Wastewater 14 $43,788,474

Redevelopment Agency 6 $16,850,000

Solid Waste 1 $728,200

Waterfront 1 $1,167,510

TOTAL 45 $134,077,520

 
Work is scheduled to be funded over several years, as generally shown in the City’s 
Six-Year Capital Improvement Program Report.  The projects rely on guaranteed or 
anticipated funding and grants. 
 
The following are design project highlights: 
 
Creeks: 

• Mission Creek Fish Passage at Tallant Road ($1,285,500) - This project is 
needed to redesign Mission Creek in this section to remove deep pools and 
obstacles, so that fish can migrate upstream to their spawning habitats.  Part of 
the project will entail removing the sewer line that crosses the Creek, and placing 
it beneath the Tallant Road Right-of-Way and the base of the bridge footings.  All 
costs associated with the sewer realignment will be shared 50/50 between the 
Creeks and the Wastewater Divisions. 



Council Agenda Report 
Capital Improvement Projects Third Quarter Report For Fiscal Year 2010 
May 11, 2010 
Page 5 of 5 

 

Parks: 
• Parma Park Equestrian Staging Area ($417,200) - The work for this project will 

address four major components of a 0.6-acre area: the staging and parking area, 
the picnic area, the entry gate, and the entry road.  The design will also address 
drainage and riparian habitat enhancements. 

 
Public Works Streets: 

• Sycamore Creek Improvements ($699,500) - The drainage improvements consist 
of a graded earth channel with rock riprap toe protection, where the top of the 
bank is approximately 60 feet wide, and includes planting native vegetation along 
the creek bank.  These initial channel improvements will increase channel 
capacity between the Highway 101 Bridge and Punta Gorda Street. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Completed Capital Improvement Projects for Third Quarter 

Fiscal Year 2010 
2. Completed Capital Improvement Projects for Fiscal Year 

2010 
3. Capital Projects with Construction in Progress 

 
 
PREPARED BY: Pat Kelly, Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer/TB 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Attachment 1 

 
 

COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS THIRD QUARTER FISCAL YEAR 2010 
 
 

Project 
Name 

Design 
Costs 

Construction 
Contract 

Construction 
Change Order 

Costs 

Construction 
Management 

Costs 
TOTALS 

Airport 
Temporary 
Facilities & 

Site 
Preparation 

$529,564 $3,475,850 $446,349 $695,143 $5,146,906  

Alamar Bridge 
Repair $15,994 $80,096 $27,000 $5,927 $129,017 

Airport Water 
System 
Upgrade 

$50,663 $310,488 $-13,738 $57,862 $405,275 

Mission Street 
@ Route 101 

Bike Lane 
$379,553 $2,175,495 $156,324 $319,020 $3,030,392 

Carrillo 
Sidewalk Infill $67,312 $366,731 $36,658 $70,209 $540,910 

Airport 
Consolidated 
Rental Car 

Project 

$773,025 $6,326,550 $371,306 $881,774 $8,352,655 

Zone 3 Slurry 
Seal $68,287 $2,204,367 $199,705 $278,181 $2,750,540 

Sewer Main 
Improvements $57,609 $631,021 $190,870 $78,569 $958,069 

Total Project 
Costs $1,942,007 $15,570,598 $1,414,474 $2,386,685 $21,313,764 

 
 



Attachment 2 

COMPLETED CAPITAL PROJECTS FISCAL YEAR 2010 
 
 

First Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
Zone 3 Pavement Preparation $465,548 
Total  $465,548 

 
 

Second Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
West Downtown Water & Wastewater 
Infrastructure 

$368,118 

Fire Station #1 $7,097,513 
San Roque Well, Phase 2 $722,302 
Total  $8,187,933 

 
 

Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2010 Total Project Costs 
Airport Temporary Facilities & Site Preparation $5,146,906 
Alamar Bridge Repair $129,017 
Airport Water System Upgrade $405,275 
Mission Street @ Route 101 Bike Lane $3,030,392 
Carrillo Sidewalk Infill $540,910 
Airport Consolidated Rental Car Project $8,352,655 
Zone 3 Slurry Seal $2,750,540 
Sewer Main Improvements $958,069 
Total  $21,313,764 

 
 
Grand Total for Fiscal Year 2010 to date - $29,967,245 
 



Attachment 3 

 
 
 

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS WITH CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 

 
 
 

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 
PROJECT CATEGORY 

No. of 
Projects 

Construction 
Contract Costs 

Airport 1 $32,858,000 
Creeks 1 $1,322,323 
Public Works:  
Streets/Transportation/Parking 9 $8,951,926 

Public Works:  Water Resources 5 $2,942,740 
Redevelopment Agency 3 $7,476,968 
Waterfront 1 $1,791,538 

TOTAL 20 $55,343,495 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 
 

File Code No.  550.10 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: May 11, 2010 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Transportation Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Parking And Business Improvement Area Annual Assessment Report, 

Fiscal Year 2011 - Intention To Levy 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:   
 
A. Approve the Fiscal Year 2011 Parking and Business Improvement Area (PBIA) Annual 

Assessment Report;  
B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara 

Declaring Council’s Intention to Levy Parking and Business Improvement Area 
Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal Year, at a Public Hearing to be Held on May 25, 
2010, at 2:00 p.m.; and 

C. Introduce and subsequently adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of the Council of 
the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 4.37 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code 
by Establishing New Business Categories and Revising Rates of Assessment for 
Specified Categories of Businesses of the Downtown Parking and Business 
Improvement Assessment District Established by City Ordinance No. 4179, Adopted 
on September 3, 1991, Pursuant to the Requirements of Parking and Business 
Improvement Area Law of the 1989 California Streets and Highways Code Sections 
36500-36551. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The governing body of the PBIA requires the preparation and adoption of an annual report 
describing any proposed changes to the PBIA District’s boundaries, benefit zones, business 
classifications, and method and basis of levying assessments.  The annual report must be 
prepared prior to the beginning of each fiscal year.  There are no proposed changes to the 
PBIA boundaries or benefit zones for Fiscal Year 2011.  However, there are proposed 
changes to the business categories and assessment levels.   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Parking And Business Improvement Area Annual Assessment Report, Fiscal Year 2011 - 
Intention To Levy 
May 11, 2010 
Page 2 

 

The Downtown Parking budget is funded primarily by hourly parking revenues and to a lesser 
extent, by PBIA and permit sales.  The PBIA revenues are directed solely towards hourly 
employee salaries and utility costs in support of the operation of City parking lots.  Other 
revenues derived from hourly parking charges and permits support the balance of expenses. 
 
The PBIA is the assessment mechanism that allows the City to provide affordable parking 
rates to customers and clients of the downtown area.  These funds partially offset the 
operating and maintenance costs of the 75 minute free period.  This 40-year partnership 
between the downtown business community and the Downtown Parking Program has helped 
to keep downtown Santa Barbara viable. 
 
Approximately 4.3 million customer transactions were processed last year.  Each of those 
patrons benefited from the free parking period.  Last year's business-paid PBIA 
assessments contributed approximately $.20 per ticket towards the maintenance costs for 
providing the free period. 
 
Prior to the start of Fiscal Year 2007, the Downtown Parking Committee (DPC) requested 
that staff review the current PBIA Assessment to determine if all of the Downtown 
businesses were being assessed equitably.  The City hired Penfield and Smith to conduct a 
review of all of the assessment categories.  Staff worked with an ad-hoc DPC Subcommittee 
and presented the results of the review with recommended changes to the DPC at their 
February 2007 meeting.  The DPC recommended moving forward with the changes at that 
meeting.  However, the changes were placed on hold following the April 2007 DPC meeting, 
where the directors of the Lobero and Granada Theaters expressed concern regarding 
payment of PBIA.  Staff conducted an analysis on the impact to parking during events at the 
theaters and presented the results to the DPC Subcommittee, who recommended a change 
to the Performing Arts category that was less than the recommendation given in February 
2007. Staff has been working with the DPC over the past three years on the PBIA 
adjustments and the DPC has consistently recommended moving forward with the changes. 
 
Penfield & Smith completed the PBIA Addendum to Final Engineer’s Report of Formula and 
Methodology of Assessments dated April 7, 2010 (2010 Addendum).  The 2010 Addendum 
is attached to and incorporated by reference to the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report.   
 
The following are the recommended adjustments to the PBIA categories, as contained in 
the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report and the 2010 Addendum: 
 

• Theaters (Movie) change from $.08 per $100 sales to $.29 per $100 sales 
• Fitness Facilities/Health Club is a new category with the same applied rate of 

$.29 per $100 sales 
• Financial Institutions change from $32.50 per million on deposit on January 1st  

to $.48 per useable square foot annually 
• Hotels & Motels change new rate and category from exempt to $67.50 per 

guest room per quarter or $270 per guestroom per year (for rooms without 
assigned parking) 

 



Council Agenda Report 
Parking And Business Improvement Area Annual Assessment Report, Fiscal Year 2011 - 
Intention To Levy 
May 11, 2010 
Page 3 

 

The DPC reviewed the draft 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report (attached) and the 
recommended adjustments at its April 8, 2010 meeting, and also recommended that Council 
approve the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report, its attached 2010 Addendum and the 
recommended assessment rates effective July 1, 2010.  The draft 2011 PBIA Annual 
Assessment Report and the 2010 Addendum will be presented to Council for its 
consideration and approval on May 11, 2010.  Additionally, although the non-profit 
performing arts theaters are not included in the PBIA changes, the DPC recommended that 
the non-profit performing arts theaters be charged at $.20 for 50% of the seats in the theater 
per performance.  They recommend this change for Fiscal Year 2012, allowing time for 
theaters to include the PBIA rate into their booking fees for the following season. 
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The revenue generated from the PBIA is $840,000 or 12% of the parking budget.  If the 
PBIA Annual Report is not approved, options such as charging for all parking, even the 
short-term parking, will need to be considered. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Browning Allen, Transportation Manager/BB/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 



1 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA DECLARING COUNCIL’S INTENTION TO 
LEVY PARKING AND BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT AREA 
ASSESSMENT RATES FOR THE 2011 FISCAL YEAR, AT A 
PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON MAY 25, 2010, AT 2:00 
P.M. 

 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 36534 California Streets and Highways Code, it is the 
intention of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara, to conduct a public hearing to 
determine whether to fix and assess a Fiscal Year 2011 Downtown Parking and 
Business Improvement Area (hereinafter referred to as PBIA), as such benefit 
assessment area has been established by Chapter 4.37 of the Santa Barbara Municipal 
Code, adopted on September 10, 1991; 
 
WHEREAS, upon the completion of a public hearing, it shall be the intention of the City 
Council to Levy and Collect a benefit assessment within the PBIA as that area is 
described in the Final Engineer’s Report, approved by the City Council on October 5, 
1999, (hereinafter “Final Engineer’s Report”) and in the 1999 PBIA Area Map, on file 
with the City Clerk of the City of Santa Barbara; 
 
WHEREAS, for Fiscal Year 2011, the improvements and activities to be provided shall 
consist of a subsidy to the City’s Transportation Division, which shall be exclusively 
devoted to the provision of a free parking period and aid in the maintenance of the low 
hourly parking rates to all persons who park automobiles within the City-owned or 
operated public parking lots within the PBIA area; and 
 
WHEREAS, a more detailed description of the improvements and activities to be 
provided to the Downtown area of Santa Barbara and the benefit to the assessed 
businesses may be found in the Final Engineer’s Report, the 2011 PBIA Annual 
Assessment Report and the attached Addendum to the Final Engineer’s Report of 
Formula and Methodology dated April 7, 2010 (hereinafter referred to as the “2011 PBIA 
Annual Assessment Report,” attached hereto as an Exhibit), which was reviewed and 
approved by the City’s Downtown Parking Committee as required by Section 4.37.145 
of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code, and which report is on file with the City Clerk and 
available for review or copying by the public. 
 



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  It is the intention of the City Council to levy and collect assessments with 
the PBIA for the Fiscal Year of 2011, within the boundaries of the PBIA, as such 
boundaries were established upon the enactment of Chapter 4.37 of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code on September 10, 1991, as amended by the City Ordinance No. 5126, 
adopted October 5, 1999, and by the approval of the related map on file with the City 
Clerk.  It is also the City Council’s intention to confirm the method and basis of 
assessment as established by the City Council upon the amendment of Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code Chapter 4.37, and as described in the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment 
Report.  
 
SECTION 2.   The proposed improvements and activities to be provided within the 
Downtown PBIA for Fiscal Year 2011 will consist of a subsidy of a free parking period of 
75 minutes, the maintenance of the low hourly parking rates for those persons using the 
City Downtown public off-street parking facilities, as more fully described in the Report. 
 
The actual assessments to be levied and collected are, as described in more detail in 
the Final Engineer’s Report, approved by the City Council on October 5, 1999, and the 
2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report. 
 
SECTION 3.   Time and place for the public hearing to consider the intention of the 
City Council shall be during the 2:00 p.m. session of the Council’s regularly scheduled 
meeting of May 25, 2010, in the City Council Chambers, located at the Santa Barbara 
City Hall. 
 
SECTION 4.   Written and oral protests to the proposed 2011 Downtown PBIA 
Annual Assessments, as described in the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report, may 
be made at the above-described public hearing provided that such protests are in the 
form and manner required by Sections 36524 and 36525 of the California Streets and 
Highways Code. 
 
SECTION 5.   The City Clerk shall give notice of the above-described public hearing 
by causing a copy of this Resolution of Intention to be published in a newspaper or 
general circulation in the City, no less than seven (7) days prior to May 25, 2010. 
 

 



ATTACHMENT  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Santa Barbara 
 

Parking and Business 
Improvement Area 

(PBIA) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2011 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ANNUAL 

ASSESSMENT 
REPORT  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
 Page Number 
 
 
 INTRODUCTION ......................................................................................... 1 
 
 
 SECTION I. PROPOSED CHANGES ...................................................... 1 
 
 
 SECTION II. IMPROVEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES ................................... 2 
 
 
 SECTION III. ESTIMATED OPERATING COSTS OF THE CITY'S 
    DOWNTOWN PARKING PROGRAM 
    FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 .................................................... 2 
 
 
 SECTION IV. PBIA RATES SECTION .................................................... 2-4 
 
 
 SECTION V. REVENUE CARRYOVERS.................................................. 4 
 
 
 SECTION VI. DOWNTOWN PARKING PROGRAM REVENUES 
    DERIVED ............................................................................. 4 



 

 -1-    

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
 
This report, filed annually as required by the California Parking and Business Improvement 
Law of 1989, will provide an explanation of any proposed changes, including, but not limited to 
the boundaries of the adopted City of Santa Barbara Downtown Parking and Business 
Improvement Area (PBIA) or any benefit zones within the area, the basis for levying the 
assessments and any changes in the classifications of businesses.  
 
Santa Barbara’s Downtown Parking Management Program operates and maintains seven 
public parking lots and five structures in the Downtown business core area, providing a total of 
3,234 parking spaces.  The program is oriented towards clients and shoppers, and is directed 
by the City’s Circulation Element to increase the public parking available and reduce the need 
for employee parking in the Downtown Core.  The reduction of employee parking is supported 
by Alternative Transportation initiatives to increase carpooling, bicycling, and mass transit 
programs.  The Downtown Parking budget is funded primarily by Hourly Parking Revenues, 
and to a lesser extent, by the PBIA and parking permits.  The PBIA revenues are directed 
solely towards employee salaries and utility costs in support of the operation of the parking 
lots.  Other revenues derived from Hourly Parking charges and permits support the balance of 
expenses, including Alternative Transportation programs designed to reduce employee parking 
in the Downtown Core. 
 
For the purpose of the assessment, the “Amendment To” and the "1999 Final Engineer's 
Report of Formula and Methodology of Assessments" (Engineer's Report), on file at the City 
Clerk's Office, shall form the basis of the Annual Report. 
 
I.  PROPOSED CHANGES 
 
  For Fiscal Year 2011, there are no changes to the boundaries or benefit zones. There are 

changes in the classifications and rates for levying the assessments of the Parking 
Business Improvement Area as established in the “Amendment To” and the “Engineers 
Report.”  These changes are explained in the Rates Section of this report. 

 
II.  IMPROVEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES 
 

A parking rate, designed to promote short-term customer/client parking, including 75 
minutes of free parking, is currently in effect in all City-operated Downtown Parking 
facilities.  These facilities are maintained and operated by the City's Downtown Parking 
Program. 



 

 -2-    

 
 III. ESTIMATED OPERATING COSTS OF THE CITY'S DOWNTOWN PARKING 

PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
IV.  PBIA RATES          
 
 A more detailed basis for levying the assessment is explained in the Amendment to the 

Engineer's Report. 
 
    I. Retail and/or Wholesale Businesses (Including Restaurants): 
 
    Group A:  Average sale of less than $20, $.56 per $100 of gross sales. 
 
    Group B:  Average sale between $20 and $100, $.29 per $100 of gross sales. 
 
    Group C:  Average sale of more than $100, $.16 per $100 of gross sales. 
 
    Group D:  Movie theaters only, $.29 per $100 of gross sales.   
 
    Group E:  Fitness Facilities/Health Clubs, $.29 per $100 of gross sales.  

  

Expenses PBIA 
Parking 
Program Total 

Salaries and Benefits $1,760,273 $2,189,216 $3,949,489
Materials, Supplies & 
Services $230,000 $600,750 $830,750 

Allocated Costs  $204,513 $204,513 

Insurance/Overhead  $767,261 $767,261 

General Fund Transfer  $312,621 $312,621 

Equipment/Capital  $25,000 $25,000 

Appropriated Reserves  $50,000 $50,000 
Alternative Transportation 
Program  $483,978 $483,978 

Bikestation  $25,000 $25,000 

New Beginnings Contract  $39,150 $39,150 

Total Operating Expenses $1,990,273 $4,697,489 $6,687,762

Capital Program Expenses  $660,000 $660,000 

Total Expenses  $5,357,489 $7,347,762



 

 -3-    

Average sale is computed by dividing the total gross sales for the year by the number of sales 
transactions. 
 
   II. Financial Institutions: 
 
    $.48* per square foot of usable space annually. 
 
   III. Stock and Bond Brokerage Offices: 
 
     $81.30* per broker. 
 
   IV. Bus Depots: 
 
      $.06* cents per square-foot of usable building space. 
 
   V. Professional: 
 
    $32.50* per person practicing the profession, and $16.30 for each non-

professional. 
 

VI. All Categories Not Otherwise Provided For: 
 
     Group A:  $0.19* cents per square-foot of usable building space. 

 
 Group B:  Educational Facilities (non-public)   $.19* per square foot of usable 
building space. 

 
VII. Hotel and Motels 

 
# of assessed rooms x $1.50/day x 30 days x 3 months x .50 occupancy = 
quarterly charges 

 
  Assessed rooms = # of rooms (–) on-site parking spaces provided 
 
  No patron parking credit would be offered as it is part of the calculation. 

 
*Rates for these categories are shown for annual assessment.  To determine quarterly 
payments, divide rates by four. 
 
 
V.     REVENUE CARRYOVERS 
 

 No excess PBIA revenues will be carried over from 2010 to the 2011 Operating Budget. 



 

 -4-    

 
 VI. PROJECTED DOWNTOWN PARKING PROGRAM REVENUES DERIVED 
 
  Revenues: Hourly Parking............................................................. $4,300,000 
   Other Parking Fees ........................................................ $695,000 
   Lobero Garage ............................................................... $246,000 
    Interest Income............................................................... $154,700 
   Commuter Parking Lot.................................................... $300,000 
   TMP/Rents……………... …………………………………....$78,740 
   Downtown Security Support/New Beginnings Contract .... $59,150 
   Miscellaneous/Special……………………………………....$11,500 
   Subtotal ...................................................................... $5,845,090 
 
  *PBIA ASSESSMENT  (Anticipated – Fiscal Year 2011 collections).......  $840,000 
 
  Total Revenues ..................................................................................... $6,685,090 
 
Revenues collected from the PBIA subsidized approximately $0.20 of the cost of providing 
parking for each vehicle parked within the Downtown Parking System. 
 



Draft Ordinance for Council Introduction 
Showing Changes from Current Code 

 in underline and strikeout text 
May 11, 2010 

 
 

 1

 
ORDINANCE NO.________ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA AMENDING CHAPTER 4.37 OF THE 
SANTA BARBARA MUNICIPAL CODE BY ESTABLISHING 
NEW BUSINESS CATEGORIES AND REVISING RATES OF 
ASSESSMENT FOR SPECIFIED CATEGORIES OF 
BUSINESSES OF THE DOWNTOWN PARKING AND 
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHED BY CITY ORDINANCE NO. 4179, ADOPTED 
ON SEPTEMBER 3, 1991, PURSUANT TO THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF PARKING AND BUSINESS 
IMPOVEMENT AREA LAW OF THE 1989 CALIFORNIA 
STREETS AND HIGHWAYS CODE SECTIONS 36500-36551 
 
 

WHEREAS, on August 6, 1991, the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara adopted a 
“Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa Barbara declaring the City Council’s intention to 
form a Downtown Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment District and 
preliminarily approving  the Engineer’s  Report” thereon as City Resolution No. 91-126 and 
called for a public hearing on the proposed parking and business assessment district on 
September 3, 1991 (hereinafter the “1991 Resolution of Intention”); 
 
WHEREAS, the public hearing was held pursuant to the Resolution of Intention on September 3, 
1991 and the City Council considered any and all protests to the formation of the proposed 
Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment, its boundaries, and the method and level 
of business assessments; 
 
WHEREAS, the majority of the businesses made subject to the assessment did not protest the 
formation of such an Assessment District at the September 1991 public hearing before the 
Council and the City Council approved the required Final Engineer’s Report and adopted City 
Ordinance 4719 codifying Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 4.37 and establishing the 
Downtown Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment District; 
 
WHEREAS, on September 7, 1999, the City Council adopted a Resolution of the Council of the 
City of Santa Barbara Declaring its Intention to Modify the Boundaries of the 1991 Downtown 
Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment District Established by City Ordinance No. 
4719, to Consider a Reduction in the Assessment Rates Thereof; and Establishing a Time of 2:00 
p.m. on Tuesday, September 28, 1999 in the City Council Chambers for a Public Hearing and to 
Receive Any Protests on the Proposed Modifications Pursuant to the Requirements of Parking 
and Business Improvement Area Law of 1989 (California Streets & Highways Code Sections 
36500-36551); 



Draft Ordinance for Council Introduction 
Showing Changes from Current Code 

 in underline and strikeout text 
May 11, 2010 

 
 

 2

 
WHEREAS, the public hearing was held pursuant to the Resolution of Intention on September 
28, 1999 in the City Council Chambers of the City of Santa Barbara to consider any protests to 
the proposed new boundaries of the Parking and Business Improvement Areas (PBIA) Benefit 
Assessment District, to consider any and all proposed revisions to the proposed PBIA Benefit 
Assessment District and to consider all public comments and protests thereon; 
 
WHEREAS,  a majority of the businesses subject to the proposed PBIA Benefit Assessment 
District did not protest the establishment of the new 1999 boundaries of the Area of such a 
parking and business benefit assessment district; 
 
WHEREAS, on October 5, 1999, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 5126, which 
expanded the boundaries of the 1991 Downtown Parking and Business Improvement Area 
Assessment District and reduced the Assessment Rates for all categories of Assessment payers; 

 
WHEREAS, on October 5, 1999, the City Council approved the PBIA Final Engineer’s Report 
of Formula and Methodology of Assessments dated October 5, 1999 as the method and basis of 
levying the PBIA Benefit Assessments; 

 
WHEREAS, the City provided the required mailed and published notice of Resolution of the 
Council of the City of Santa Barbara Declaring Council’s Intention to Levy Parking and 
Business Improvement Area Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal Year in the manner required 
by Sections 36523 and 36523.5 of the State Streets and Highways Code; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, 2010, the City Council approved the Resolution of Intention to Levy 
Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal Year; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 11, the City Council approved the 2011 PBIA Annual Assessment Report 
and its attached Addendum to the PBIA Final Engineer’s Report of Formula and Methodology of 
Assessments dated April 7, 2010; 

 
WHEREAS, on May 25, 2010, the public hearing was held pursuant to the Resolution of 
Intention to Levy Parking and Business Improvement Area Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal 
Year in the City Council Chambers of the City of Santa Barbara to consider any protests to the 
proposed business classifications and assessment rates, and to consider all public comments and 
protests thereon; 
 
WHEREAS, at the pubic hearing on May 25, 2010, a majority of the businesses subject to the 
proposed PBIA Assessment Rates for the 2011 Fiscal Year did not protest the establishment of 
the business categories and assessment rates; 
 



Draft Ordinance for Council Introduction 
Showing Changes from Current Code 

 in underline and strikeout text 
May 11, 2010 

 
 

 3

WHEREAS, the Improvements and Activities to be provided in the 1999 Expanded Downtown 
PBIA Benefit Assessment District will be funded by the proposed assessments and the revenue 
from the assessments will not be used to provide any improvements or activities outside the 1999 
Expanded Downtown PBIA Benefit Assessment Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the businesses within the 1999 expanded Downtown PBIA Benefit Assessment 
Area will be benefited by the Improvements and Activities to be funded by the PBIA 
Assessments and such benefit is amply demonstrated by the Final Engineer’s Report, the 2011 
PBIA Annual Assessment Report and its attached Addendum to the PBIA Final Engineer’s 
Report of Formula and Methodology of Assessments dated April 7, 2010, the additional 
materials presented to the City Council in connection with the May 25, 2010 public hearing and 
the presentation, comments and evidence received by the City Council during the May 25, 2010 
public hearing on this matter. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA DOES 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Section 4.37.040 of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code Chapter 4.37 is amended 
to read as follows by deleting in its entirety section 4.37.040 and adding the following new 
section 4.37.040: 
 
 SECTION 4.37.040  ASSESSMENT RATES 

 
The rates of assessment imposed by this Chapter shall be as follows: 

 
 I. RETAIL-WHOLESALE, THEATERAND FITNESS FACILITIES 
ASSESSMENT RATES. 
 Group A. SMALL PURCHASES.  Retail and/or wholesale businesses with an 
average sale of less than twenty dollars ($20.00), fifty-six cents ($0.56) per hundred dollars 
($100.00) of gross sales. 
 Group B. MEDIUM PURCHASES.  Retail and/or wholesale businesses with an 
average sale between twenty dollars and one hundred dollars ($20-100), twenty-nine cents 
($0.29) per hundred dollars ($100.00) of gross sales. 
  Group C. LARGE PURCHASES.  Retail and/or wholesale businesses with an 
average sale of more than one hundred dollars ($100.00), sixteen cents ($0.16) per one hundred 
dollars ($100.00) of gross sales.   
  Group D. THEATERS.  Twenty-nine cents ($0.29) per one hundred dollars 
($100.00) of gross sales. 
  Group E. FITNESS FACILITIES/HEALTH CLUBS.   Twenty-nine cents ($0.29) 
per one hundred dollars ($100.00) of gross sales. 
(As used in this subdivision (I), average sale is computed by dividing the total gross sales for the 
year by the number of sales transactions). 
 


	1.DOC
	2.DOC
	3.DOC
	4.DOC
	5.DOC
	6.DOC
	7.DOC
	8.DOC
	9.PDF
	10.DOC
	11.DOC
	12.DOC
	13.DOC
	14.DOC
	15.DOC
	16.DOC
	17.DOC
	18.DOC
	19.DOC
	20.DOC
	21.DOC
	22.DOC
	23.DOC
	24.PDF
	25.PDF
	26.PDF



